










HERMISTON	CITY	COUNCIL	
Regular Meeting     April 13th, 2015 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 
Mayor Dave Drotzmann called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Present were Councilors Hardin, 
Smith, Myers, Kirwan, Gutierrez, Beas‐Fitzgerald and Primmer.  Mayor Drotzmann announced Councilor 
Davis would be arriving shortly  (arrived at 8:20 pm). Staff members  in attendance were City Manager 
Smith, City Attorney Luisi, Mark Morgan, Bill Schmittle, Chief Edmiston, Larry Fetter, Clint Spencer, Ron 
Sivey,  Nate  Rivera  and  Lilly  Alarcon‐Strong.    News media  present were  Jade McDowell  of  the  East 
Oregonian, Sean Hart of  the Hermiston Herald and Michael Kane of NE Oregon Now.   The pledge of 
allegiance was given. 
 
Mayor Drotzmann announced this would be the first meeting he held using a new agenda format. 
 
Proclamation/Recognizing Hermiston High School Wrestling Team 
Mayor Drotzmann read a Proclamation recognizing the Hermiston High School Wrestling Teams Oregon 
Class 5A State Wrestling Championship. 
 
Citizen Input On Non‐Agenda Items 
Jill  Hayes,  357  E  Beech  Ave,  stated  she  is  the  Vice  President  of  the  Umatilla  County  Peer  Support 
Network  and would  like  to  address  the Council  regarding  the  lack of  transportation  available  for  the 
residents of Hermiston, especially those residents who are on fixed incomes and low income individuals, 
as well as, youths. She would  like the Council to consider a bus system similar to the one used  in Tri‐
Cities Washington. This system would allow her and others to be social, shop, be involved in recreational 
activities  and  volunteer  in  the  community with more ease,  as well  as,  improve  the quality of  life  for 
those who would utilize the transportation system.   
 
Mayor Drotzmann stated the Council does realize the need for additional transportation and is seeking 
ways to fund, improve and add to the system currently in place.   
 
Consent Items 
Councilor Myers requested the exclusion of Item 6F, Final Plat – Castle Homes Phase 3 – W Highland Ave 
–  10  lots.  Councilor  Gutierrez moved  and  Councilor  Kirwan  seconded  all  Consent  Agenda  items  be 
approved for filing with the exclusion of item 6F, to include:  

1) Minutes of the March 23rd, regular meeting 
2) Minutes of the January 28th, Library Board meeting 
3) Minutes of the March 11th, Planning Commission meeting 
4) Minutes of the March 16th, Hispanic Advisory Committee meeting 
5) Final Plat – Desert Sky Phase 4 – S First Street – 14 Lots 
6) Final Plat – Highland Summit Phase 7 – SE 13th Street – 21 Lots 
7) Announcements  of  Standing  Committee  Vacancies  for  the  Planning  Commission,  Budget 

Committee,  Recreation  Projects  Fund  Advisory  Committee,  Hispanic  Advisory  Committee  and 
EOTEC Board 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Items Removed From Consent Agenda 
Councilor Myers stated she would like to abstain from voting on item 6F, Final Plat – Castle Homes Phase 
3 – W Highland Ave – 10  lots, as  it was a conflict of  interested. Councilor Kirwan moved and Councilor 
Beas‐Fitzgerald seconded approval  for Final Plat – Castle Homes Phase 3 – W Highland Ave – 10  lots. 



HERMISTON	CITY	COUNCIL	
Regular Meeting     April 13th, 2015 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Councilor Hardin,  Smith,  Kirwan, Gutierrez,  Beas‐Fitzgerald  and  Primmer  voted  yes.  Councilor Myers 
abstained from voting. Motioned carried 6‐1.  
 
Conference Center Operational Contract 
City Manager Smith stated this was one of the first items brought to his attention when he started with 
the  City.  EOTEC  was  in  the  process  of  being  constructed  for  large  meetings  and  gatherings, 
simultaneously,  the  City was meeting with  the  Chamber  of  Commerce who  operates  the Hermiston 
Conference Center  about  the  same  subject. City Manager  Smith  stated Assistant City Manager Mark 
Morgan would be presenting  the Council with  information  regarding  the Chamber of Commerce and 
Conference  Center  operations.  Assistant  City Manager Morgan  stated  the  Conference  Center  often 
schedules  events  a  year  in  advance  and  needs  some  certainty  that  they  are  able  to  schedule  these 
events as EOTEC is scheduled to be operational by Summer of 2016. The City Councils Conference Center 
sub‐committee  recommends  that  the Council commit  to extending  the contract with  the Chamber of 
Commerce to operate the Hermiston Conference Center through the end of 2016. The City of Hermiston 
owns the conference center facility that was purchased and renovated in 1994 thanks to $600,000.00 of 
community  donations,  a  $250,000.00  contribution  from  the  City  from  the  sale  of  other  land  and  a 
$300,000.00  loan  from  the City’s General Fund. The City pays  the Chamber of Commerce $64,350.00 
annually  to  operate  the  facility  as  a  conference  center,  as well  as,  covering  all  of  the  utilities  and 
insurance costs, these costs total approximately $90,000.00 per year to the City. Total operational costs 
to the city per year is about $180,000.00 taking into considerations all the other expenditures ie; linens, 
toiletries, staffing for events, etc. From there, the conference center sees revenue from rent for events. 
Considering the City’s Subsidy, event  income and expenses, the Conference Center has averaged a net 
loss of $49,000.00 over the past five years. The Chamber of Commerce also uses the office space and the 
facility for various events for free. 
 
Assistant City Manager Morgan stated a percentage of the City’s Transient Room Tax  is being used to 
subsidize  the Conference Center. This Transient Room Tax has been  increasing over  the past 10 years 
due to increased room and occupancy rates. Currently, besides Weddings and Quinceneras, most of the 
Conference  Center  events  do  not  have  a  big  impact  on  the  Transient  Room  Tax.  The  Chamber  of 
Commerce acts as  the City’s Contractor  to operate  the  facility and  the contract automatically  renews 
every  January  1st,  but  requires  a  six month  notice  to  terminate.  The  Conference  Center  has  three 
different rooms with size capacity from 20 to 600 people, each room  is used 2‐3 times per week. The 
Conference Center sits on 2 acres of commercial real estate with direct access onto Highway 395 and 
was valued for  insurance purposes at about $3 Million, the property will be commercially appraised  in 
May.  
 
Mayor Drotzmann stated the City has had meetings with the Chamber of Commerce regarding this issue. 
The Chamber of Commerce wanted some reassurance the City would allow them to continue to use the 
facility,  and  the  sub‐committee  recommended  the  Chamber  of  Commerce  continue  to  use  the 
Conference Center until at least through the end of 2016, until the City knows what the future will hold 
for  the  Conference  Center  once  EOTEC  comes  online.  Mayor  Drotzmann  would  like  to  have  the 
community’s input on what they would like to see done with the Community Center. 
 
Councilor  Kirwan  and  Primmer  explained  the  City  is  and  will  be  making  a  substantial  financial 
contribution  to  EOTEC  and  the  City  cannot  afford  to  operate  these  two  facilities. Mayor Drotzmann 
stated the Councils job is to try to do the best it can with the tax payers resources, with that being said, 



HERMISTON	CITY	COUNCIL	
Regular Meeting     April 13th, 2015 

Page 3 of 7 
 

no final decision has been made or will be made at this moment regarding the Chamber of Commerce 
and the Conference Center with the exception of renewing the Chamber of Commerce contract through 
2016.  
 
John Spomer, 745 W Quince, stated he appreciated all  the  information he was able  to gather on  line 
from Assistant City Manager Morgan  regarding  this  issue  and  the  fact  that  the Council wants  public 
input. Mr.  Spooner  asked  the Council  if  it had ever been  released  to  the public  that  the Conference 
Center would be a tradeoff to EOTEC.  
 
City  Manager  Smith  stated  from  what  he  understood  when  EOTEC  was  planning  the  facility  they 
estimated the number of events without taking any events that currently take place at the Conference 
Center.  EOTEC  was  designed  to  hold  larger  events  that  the  Conference  Center  cannot  currently 
accommodate  and  to  attract  people  from  outside  the  City  to  hold  larger  events. Mayor Drotzmann 
stated EOTEC  is much more than an event center,  it  is also fair and rodeo grounds. Hermiston needs a 
facility  that  is  larger  than  the  Conference  Center,  as  there  are  events  that  cannot  be  hosted  at  the 
Conference Center due to size limitations. There was no deliberate intention of creating EOTEC to close 
the Conference Center. 
 
Joe Franell, 34010 Beech Shore Drive, Mr. Franell stated he  is the Chair of the Chamber of Commerce 
Board  of Directors  and  he  is  appreciative  that  the  City  is  communicating well with  the  Chamber  of 
Commerce and that the City is willing to extend their contract through 2016. Chairman Franell stated the 
renewal of the Chamber of Commerce  is not  just about giving stability to the Chamber but also about 
giving  stability  to  the Community as  there are a number of events  that  take place at  the Conference 
Center  ie;  Hermiston  Education  Foundation,  Distinguished  Citizens  Award  Banquet,  Parks  and 
Recreations events, etc. The Conference Center is a community asset and not a City Council asset and it 
is important to engage the community in discussions about what happens with their Conference Center, 
whether it be keeping it, refurbishing it or selling it. The Chamber of Commerce is excited to be a part of 
that discussion and publically applaud the Councils efforts to be deliberate about the decisions that will 
be made regarding the Conference Center.  
 
Mayor Drotzmann apologized for not including the community events that take place in the Conference 
Center and stated the City  is pleased that the Chamber  is working very closely regarding this  issue and 
the Council wants to make sure the community knows they will continue to have a facility to host these 
events, no matter where that may be. 
 
Jill Hayes, 357 E Beech, Mrs. Hayes recommended the City not destroy the Conference Center, instead, 
the City should allow the Umatilla County Peer Support Network to rent the facility as a drop in center to 
include the community and continue to rent the facility out to the community. The Conference Center 
could also be used to target Teens as there are not many outlets in the area for this age group.  
 
Mayor Drotzmann stated the Council has no intention of destroying the Conference Center but is looking 
at all options presented to the Council.  
 
Tamara Mabbott, 80379 Zimmer Lane, Mrs. Mabbott would  like to applaud the Council  for being very 
open with  the community  regarding  its decision with  the Conference Center and  for supplying all  the 
information online. Mrs. Mabbott stated she  looked up the deed to the Conference Center and  it was 



HERMISTON	CITY	COUNCIL	
Regular Meeting     April 13th, 2015 

Page 4 of 7 
 

purchased for $400,000.00, the traffic count is between 16,000 to 20,000 and recommends the council 
expand its current sub‐committee. 
 
Liz Marvin, 1725 E Highland Ave, Mrs. Marvin stated she moved to Hermiston  in 1999 and one of the 
first thing she noticed was how welcoming the community was and how many activities you were able 
to be involved in. One of the things that she was impressed with is how the community had a “we can do 
anything attitude” and transformed this old grocery store  into a Conference Center with the help and 
backing  of  the  entire  community.  Mrs.  Marvin  stated  things  like  this,  networking  and  building 
relationships  is what makes this community strong, this  is what makes Hermiston so wonderful. There 
could be some negativity within the community if the Council decides to sell the Conference Center with 
all the effort the community placed into making this facility. 
 
Kelly  Sanders  stated  he  feels  the  Conference  Center  is  a wonderful  building  and  has  served  a  great 
purpose in our community. The Conference Center adds a lot to the community, letting the community 
host events such as the Festival of Trees. EOTEC can hold these events, but the facility is located further 
out making it hard to accommodate those lunch time meetings due to traffic. The community has spent 
a  lot  of  time  and  effort  into  the  Conference  Center  and would  encourage  the  Council  to  keep  the 
building.  
 
Councilor  Gutierrez  moved  and  Councilor  Kirwan  seconded  to  extend  the  Chamber  of  Commerce 
contract  for operation of  the Hermiston Conference Center  through  the end of 2016. Motion  carried 
unanimously. 
 
Anderson Perry and Associates Engineering Contract 
City Manager Smith stated the City of Hermiston has not had a City Engineer on staff since 2009. Since 
that  time  Kennedy  Jenks,  an  outside  consulting  firm,  has  acted  at  the City  engineer  for most  of  the 
standard  needs  like  development  reviews,  water  &  sewer  line  design,  street  paving,  etc.  This 
relationship has worked well because of the broad scope of engineers they have and the City has had 
access to. Although there are many benefits with contracting though a consulting firm, the City has had 
a lack of ability to work with an engineer on a daily basis for smaller issues. Since Kennedy Jenks is based 
out of Portland the City has had to pay for travel expenses every time they travel to Hermiston and staff 
has to squeeze in as many routine questions as they can during these visits.  
 
City Manager Smith stated in August the Public Works related staff met to discuss the needs they have 
for Engineering Services and what would be best for the City in terms of accessibility and cost, as well as, 
looking into what other cities in the area do for their engineering needs. It was determined that the City 
would publish a Request for Proposals to seek qualified firms that would be able to provide the City with 
a  dedicated  in‐person  staff  time  for  at  least  two  days  per  week.  The  City  received  five  qualified 
responses and Anderson Perry was the best option. Anderson Perry Engineering services would cost the 
City approximately $90,000.00 per year, compared to over $150,000.00 per year for Kennedy Jenks.   
 
Chas  Hutchins,  Anderson  Perry  Engineer,  stated  he  would  be  the  representative  for  the  City  of 
Hermiston. Mr.  Hutchins  stated  an  engineer  is  needed  throughout  the  city  for  its  infrastructure  for 
roads, sewer, water, bridges, transportation, traffic signals, all the things that keep a community running 
properly an engineer is responsible for. Anderson Perry Engineering work with a lot of the communities 



HERMISTON	CITY	COUNCIL	
Regular Meeting     April 13th, 2015 

Page 5 of 7 
 

in the area including La Grande, Echo, Umatilla, etc so they are able to contract the needed services with 
local contractors who know their work and can also usually negotiate a better price as well.    
 
Mayor  Drotzmann  was  concerned  that  Kennedy  Jenks  has  been  such  a  big  part  of  the  growth  in 
Hermiston that perhaps the City would continue to utilize their services and there would be no savings 
benefit, therefore, why contract another Engineering service. City Manager Smith stated Kennedy Jenks 
would still finish out the six projects they are currently working on for the City, as well as, help the City 
and Anderson Perry with any and all  information pertaining  to  the City. Once  the  transition period  is 
complete the City would see a financial gain.  
 
There was discussion between the Mayor, Council, City Manager Smith, Assistant City Manager Morgan 
and Chas Hutchins regarding what days Chas will be in Hermiston, engineering costs, transition time and 
other specialized engineers from Anderson Perry that will be working on Hermiston projects.  
 
There was discussion between  the Mayor Drotzmann, Councilor Hardin, City Manager Smith and City 
Attorney Luisi regarding the Anderson Perry Engineering contract. City Attorney Luisi stated the contract 
is  owned  by  the  engineers  not  the  City,  therefore,  the  City  cannot  use  the  documents  as  they  are 
instruments of service. The contract is for one year, and is automatically extended for succeeding three‐
year periods  indefinitely.  If  for some reason  the City  is dissatisfied with  the service of Anderson Perry 
Engineering the City would have to give Anderson Perry a notice of default and Anderson Perry would 
have a time frame in which to correct the default or the City would have to wait out the three year term. 
Attorney  Luisi  recommended  the  contract  only  be  for  one‐year  terms. Mayor  Drotzmann  asked  for 
clarification on how the terms of the contract were established. Assistant City Manager Mark Morgan 
stated  the  City’s  engineering  contact with  Anderson  Perry  is  very  standard  as most  all  engineering 
contracts have  these  types of  rolling  terms. Attorney  Luisi  stated  attorneys  for  the engineers usually 
construct the terms of the contracts making them more favorable for the engineers. He has, in the past, 
recommended  the city contract an attorney who specializes  in construction contracts  to amend  these 
types  of  contracts  for  the  City.  There  are  items  the  City  should  consider  changing  to  include  the 
instruments of service as the engineer would own the drawings and the City will not hold the engineers 
responsible  for  drawing  defective  plans.  Attorney  Luisi  stated  EOTEC  had  a  similar  contract  and 
experienced problems because they did not have their contract reviewed by an attorney or amended. 
Mayor Drotzmann stated the City feels Anderson Perry is a very qualified engineering firm and is looking 
forward to conducting business with them but will table this decision until a new contract is drawn up to 
include the concerns that Attorney Luisi presented. Mayor Drotzmann thanked Kennedy Jenks for their 
tremendous service to the community as they have been and will continue to be a great resource to the 
City.  
 
(Councilor Davis arrived.) 
 
Committee Reports 
Faith Based Advisory Committee: Councilor Hardin stated Pastor Craig Frailey will be the new facilitator 
to replace Dr. Dean Hackett. Pastor Craig Frailey stated he would soon be presenting the council with 
their recommendations  for the  implementation of a mentoring program that will be offered to at‐risk 
families in Hermiston.  
 



HERMISTON	CITY	COUNCIL	
Regular Meeting     April 13th, 2015 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Parks and Recreation Committee: Councilor Myers stated the meeting was rescheduled from Thursday 
April 9th to Thursday April 16th.  
 
Community Enhancement Committee: Councilor Myers  stated Assistant City Manager Morgan will be 
putting together a presentation for community  involvement. Assistant City Manager Morgan stated he 
will be  issuing a press  release asking  for  community  involvement  for  ideas and  recommendations on 
projects the City would be able to implement depending on project size, priority and available funds.   
 
Mayor  Drotzmann  stated  the  Landscaping  Ordinance  was  a  recommendation  from  the  Community 
Enhancement  Committee  and  recommends  the  community  and  council  to  attend  the  open  house 
dedicated to the Landscaping Ordinance on May 7th from 4:00 pm to 6:00 pm.  
 
Hispanic Advisory Committee: Councilor Gutierrez stated  the Committee will meet Monday April 20th. 
Cinco de Mayo will be Sunday May 3rd on Main Street and  in  front of City Hall. Parks and Recreation 
Director  Larry  Fetter  stated  there will  be  a  parade  from  the  Conference  Center  to  2nd  Street  and  a 
carnival in the parking lot across from City Hall on Friday, Saturday and Sunday for Cinco de Mayo. 
 
Library Board: Councilor Smith stated they were in the process of finalizing the contract with the County 
Library District. Councilor Smith stated the library has a program called Library‐2‐go in which individuals 
are able to access library books without ever going to the library, this program is available online.  
 
Mayor  Drotzmann  stated  City  Manager  Smith  has  recommended  adding  a  Public  Infrastructure 
Committee  to meet quarterly. City Manager Smith  stated  this committee would meet  to discuss new 
ideas  and  projects  that would  eventually  come  to  the City Council. Mayor Drotzmann  stated  he  has 
assigned Councilor Kirwan, Smith and Davis to this committee. Mayor Drotzmann stated Councilor Davis 
will no longer be on the Faith‐Based Advisory Committee and asked that if there was any councilor who 
was interested in joining the committee to advise him of their intention.  
 
Mayors Report 
Mayor Drotzmann  stated Hermiston Foods  is having a 25 year celebration on Sunday April 26th,  from 
11:00 am to 2:00 pm at the National Guard Armory in appreciation of their employees, community and 
city officials. Foods and kid games will be provided. 
 
Mayor Drotzmann  stated he was  invited  to Rocky Heights Elementary school  to do a presentation on 
“What  a Mayor  does”.  The  kids  informed  him  they  felt  the  City  needed  a  Fred Meyer,  Target  and 
Applebees. The kids sent him thank you letters which he is sharing with the Council to view. 
 
Council Report  
Councilor Hardin stated he would like Parks and Recreation Director Larry Fetter to present information 
on  the City’s 1st Clean Sweep. Mr. Fetter stated Clean Sweep will be held on Saturday April 25th  from 
9:00 am to 3:00 pm at the UEC parking lot. There will be stations throughout the parking lot taking items 
like tires, paint, appliances and hard to dispose of items. The event will have volunteers from the Faith‐
Based  Advisory  Committee.  Mayor  Drotzmann  stated  Clean  Sweep  was  another  idea  from  the 
Community  Enhancement  Committee,  as  well  as,  partnering  with  Sanitary  Disposal  and  the  Police 
Department.  Community members who have questions regarding this event are encouraged to call City 
Hall. This event is free.  



HERMISTON	CITY	COUNCIL	
Regular Meeting     April 13th, 2015 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
Councilor Gutierrez announced and congratulated Sam Colbray who  is half Hispanic and half black, for 
winning the National Wrestling Championship.  
 
Councilor  Primmer  stated  the  Governor  proclaimed  this  week  National  Tele‐communicators  week. 
Councilor  Primmer  stated  he  feels  grateful  to  have  the  privilege  to  be married  to  a  dispatcher  and 
encourages everyone to say thank you to those emergency dispatchers who serve our communities and 
help us through difficult situations.    
 
City Manger Report  
City Manager  Smith  stated  the  Police Departments  1st Quarter Crime  Report  has  been  released,  the 
Public Safety Committee will be held  later  this month and  the City of Hermiston has  received  its 23rd 

Award for Finance Excellence from The Governments Finance Officers Association.    
 
Recess 
Mayor Drotzmann recessed the regular meeting at 8:45 p.m. and announced that an executive session 
will  convene  in  accordance with ORS  192.660  (2)(h)  to  discuss  legal  rights  and  duties  pertaining  to 
current litigation, or litigation likely to be filed. 
 
Representatives of the news media and designated staff will be allowed to attend the executive session. 
All other members of  the  audience  are excluded. Representatives of  the news media  are  specifically 
directed  not  to  report  on  any  of  the  deliberations  during  the  executive  session,  except  to  state  the 
general  subject of  the  session  as previously  announced. No  final decision may be made  in executive 
session. At the end of the executive session, the council will return to open session which the audience 
may attend.  
 
Reconvened 
Mayor Drotzmann reconvened the regular meeting at 9:15 p.m.  
 
Adjournment 
There was no other business, and the meeting was adjourned at 9:15 pm. 
 
            SIGNED: 
 
            /s/             
            MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
/s/             
ASSISTANT CITY RECORDER  
         
 

 








































































































































































